

**AMENDED AND RESTATED
BY-LAWS
OF
THE PORT AUTHORITY OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI**

Revised October 23, 2023

ARTICLE I

Defined Terms

Section 1.1 Authority.

The Port Authority of Kansas City, Missouri, a public body corporate and politic created pursuant to Sections 68.010 to 68.075, RSMo, and formed by the City Council of Kansas City, Missouri, by Ordinance Number 47523 adopted on February 11, 1977.

Section 1.2 Board.

The Board of Commissioners of the Authority, which is the governing body of the Authority.

Section 1.3 City.

The City of Kansas City, Missouri.

Section 1.4 City Council.

The City Council of Kansas City, Missouri.

Section 1.5 Commissioner(s).

Member(s) of the Board of Commissioners.

Section 1.6 Mayor

The mayor of the City.

Section 1.7 Port Authority Law.

Sections 68.010 to 68.075, RSMo.

Section 1.8 Sunshine Law.

Section 610.010 to 610.225, RSMo, governing meetings of public governmental bodies including the Board, as now or hereafter amended.

Section 1.9 Undefined Terms.

Any term undefined by this Article shall have the same meaning as such term is given under the Port Authority Law, if defined therein, otherwise as defined by the Sunshine Law, or other Missouri statute or case law.

ARTICLE II

Offices and Records

Section 2.1 Principal Office.

The principal office of the Authority shall be located at such place in Kansas City, Missouri, as may be designated by the Board. The Authority may have such other offices within Kansas City, Missouri, as the business of the Authority may require from time to time, located at such place or places as may be designated by the Board.

Section 2.2 Records.

The Authority shall keep correct and complete books and records of account, and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of the Board, and each committee having any of the authority of the Board. The Authority shall keep at its principal office a record of the name and address of each Commissioner.

ARTICLE III

Board of Commissioners

Section 3.1 General Powers.

The business and affairs of the Authority shall be managed by, or under the authority of, the Board.

Section 3.2 Number/Term of Office.

The Board shall consist of seven (7) Commissioners drawn from persons residing in Missouri for at least one year prior to their appointment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the total membership may be increased by the City Council, pursuant to ordinance or resolution, to include not more than nine (9) Commissioners. All Commissioners, regardless of number, are to be appointed in the manner prescribed by the City Council, which has delegated such authority to the Mayor pursuant to the City's Charter.

Section 3.3 Term/Staggering.

Appointments to the Board shall be for a term of six (6) years, except that the duration of one or more terms may be modified at the time of appointment or reappointment for the purpose of ensuring that no more than three (3) terms expire in any given calendar year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Commissioner whose term has expired may continue to serve until such time as his or

her successor has been appointed by the Mayor and installed by the Board, except as provided in Section 3.10 of these By-Laws.

Section 3.4 Qualifications.

A Commissioner shall possess, whether by training or experience, knowledge with respect to matters involving development and land and river based transportation so as to provide meaningful oversight with respect to the Authority's statutory mission of promoting the general welfare, promoting development, encouraging private capital investments through the creation of industrial facilities and industrial parks, and endeavoring to increase the volume of commerce.

Section 3.5 Non-Voting Advisors/Non-Voting Members.

The Board may appoint two non-voting liaison advisors. Such advisors shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and until their respective successors are approved. Also, the Board may from time to time appoint one or more non-voting advisory members. Such non-voting advisory members shall serve at the pleasure of the Board, subject to reappointment at each successive annual meeting.

Section 3.6 Removal.

A Commissioner may be removed by the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths (3/4) of the Board's total membership in the event the Board reasonably believes that the Commissioner to be removed is not acting or fulfilling his/her duties in the best interest of the Authority. The Board shall confer with the President/CEO prior to the removal of any Commissioner, but the approval of the President/CEO shall not be required. Any removal hereunder shall only be considered at a Special Meeting of the Board expressly called for such purposes.

Section 3.7 Resignation.

A Commissioner may resign at any time by delivering a written resignation to the Mayor and Chairperson of the Authority specifying the time at which such resignation shall be effective. In the absence of any specification, such resignation shall be effective upon delivery thereof. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 3.8 Vacancies.

Any vacancy created by the removal, resignation, death, disqualification or failure or inability to fulfill the duties of a Commissioner shall be filled as provided in Section 3.2 of these By-Laws, except that the Commissioner appointed to fill the vacancy shall only serve for the remainder of the vacated term. The Commissioner may thereafter be appointed to serve one or more full terms as provided in these By-Laws.

Section 3.9 Effect of Vacancies.

The failure of the Mayor to fill, or election not to fill, any vacancy on the Board in a manner as to preclude the Board from having less than seven (7) seated Commissioners at any given time

shall not preclude the Board from transacting business or otherwise exercising any powers delegated to the Authority under the Port Authority Law.

Section 3.10 Reappointments/Maximum Consecutive Terms.

No Commissioner shall serve for a term exceeding twelve (12) consecutive calendar years except as provided herein. Any Commissioner serving on the Board as of the date these By-Laws are adopted shall be permitted to serve the remainder of their current term and two additional terms (if reappointed), notwithstanding that it will cause their cumulative term of service to exceed twelve (12) consecutive years. Any person having served a maximum consecutive term will become eligible for reappointment to the Board after four (4) calendar years have elapsed.

Section 3.11 Regular Meetings.

The Board shall hold regular meetings at such time, date and location as may from time to time be determined by the Commissioners, one of which regular meetings shall be the Authority's annual meeting, which shall be held during the month of August of each year.

Section 3.12 Special Meetings.

The Chairperson or any three (3) Commissioners may call special meetings of the Board and may fix the time and place for the holding of such meetings, which shall be held for the purpose of transacting any business designated in the notice of the special meeting, or as permitted by Section 3.13.

Section 3.13 Notices.

A. Notice to Commissioners.

- (1) Annual and Regular Meetings. Written or printed notices of meetings of the Board, whether specifically required by the Port Authority Law, the Sunshine Law or any other Missouri statute regulating meetings of public governmental bodies, the definition of which includes the Board, shall be delivered personally, by mail, by electronic mail, or by fax to each Commissioner at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to each scheduled meeting.
- (2) Special Meetings. Notice of a special meeting shall be delivered personally, by mail, by electronic mail, or by fax to each Commissioner at least two (2) days prior to the date of such special meeting. At such special meeting no business shall be considered other than as designated in the notice; however, if all of the Commissioners are present at a special meeting, any item of business, whether or not designated in the notice, may be transacted with their unanimous consent.

If mailed, the notice of a meeting given to a Commissioner shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail,

addressed to the Commissioner at the address on the records of the Authority, with postage thereon prepaid.

- B. Notice to the Public. Notice of the time, date and place of each meeting of the Board, its tentative agenda, and whether any portion of the meeting will be closed shall be given to the public at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting time, exclusive of weekends and holidays, in a manner reasonably calculated to advise the public of the matters to be considered and in compliance with the Sunshine Law. Copies of this notice shall be posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place which is easily accessible to the public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Authority. Copies of such notice shall at the same time be provided to any representative of the news media who requests notice of meetings of the Authority. In addition to the above requirements, if the Board proposes to hold a closed meeting, closed portion of a public meeting, or closed vote, the notice shall state the reason for holding such closed meeting, closed portion of a public meeting, or closed vote by reference to the specific exception allowed pursuant to the Sunshine Law.

Section 3.14 Special Circumstances.

When it is necessary to hold a meeting of the Board on less than twenty-four (24) hours notice, at a place that is not reasonably accessible to the public, or at a time that is not reasonably convenient to the public, the nature of the good cause justifying departure from the normal requirements shall be stated at the beginning of the meeting and recorded in the minutes.

Section 3.15 Quorum.

A majority of the members of Commissioners serving at the time of any meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at such meeting. If a quorum shall not be present at any such meeting, a majority of the Commissioners then present shall have power to adjourn the meeting, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, to a specified date. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present any business may be transacted which could have been transacted at the original session of the meeting.

Section 3.16 Action.

The concurrence of the majority of the Commissioners present in any meeting at which a quorum is present shall bind the Authority.

Section 3.17 Telephone/Electronic Participation in Meetings.

Commissioners may participate in any Board meeting by telephone or other electronic means so long as all persons participating in the meeting can hear one another, and a location has been identified in the notice of the meeting at which members of the public shall be allowed to observe and attend the public meeting so that the requirements of the Sunshine Law are met. Participation by a Commissioner in Board meetings by telephone or other electronic means shall constitute the Commissioner's presence in person at the meeting and any Commissioner

participating in this manner shall be entitled to vote and will count for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present.

Section 3.18 Closed Meetings and Votes of the Board.

If the Board intends to hold a closed meeting, a closed portion of a public meeting, or a closed vote, the required notice shall be given. In addition, the Board must, by a majority vote of those Commissioners present, approve such closed meeting, closed portion of a public meeting, or closed vote. The Board may adjourn to a closed meeting, closed portion of a public meeting, or closed vote in order to consider any of the following:

- A. Legal actions, causes of action or litigation involving the Authority and any confidential or privileged communications between the Authority or its representatives and its attorneys;
- B. Leasing, purchase or sale of real estate by the Authority where public knowledge of the transaction might adversely affect the legal consideration therefor;
- C. Hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting of particular employees by the Authority when information relating to an employee's performance or merit is discussed or recorded;
- D. Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf of the Authority or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups;
- E. Software codes for electronic data processing and documentation thereof;
- F. Specifications for competitive bidding, until either the specifications are officially approved by the Authority or are published for bid;
- G. Sealed bids and related documents, until the bids are opened and sealed proposals and related documents or any documents related to a negotiated contract until a contract is executed, or all proposals are rejected;
- H. Individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or records pertaining to employees or applicants for employment;
- I. Records which are protected from disclosure by law;
- J. Meetings and public records relating to scientific and technological innovations in which the owner has proprietary interest; and
- K. Confidential or privileged communications between the Authority and its auditor, including all auditor work product.

Prior to a closed meeting, a closed portion of a public meeting or a closed vote, the Chairperson or Commissioner presiding at the meeting shall state the topic to be discussed and/or voted upon in the closed meeting, closed portion of the public meeting, or closed vote, stating the specific

section of the Sunshine Law which allows for such action. The vote taken to hold a closed meeting, closed portion of a meeting, or a closed vote shall be by roll call and shall be made a part of the minutes of the public portion of the meeting.

When a meeting, portion of a meeting, or vote is closed, only that portion of the meeting facility necessary to house the Board may be closed, allowing the members of the public to remain to attend any subsequent open portion of the meeting held by the Board following the closed portion of the meeting, or closed vote.

All votes in closed meetings shall be by roll call. Minutes shall be taken and votes shall be recorded at each closed meeting in the same manner as open meetings. All minutes and records of votes of each closed meeting, closed portion of a public meeting or closed vote, shall be made available to the public when required by the Sunshine Law.

Section 3.19 Manner of Voting.

Votes by the Board shall be by voice vote unless the presiding officer shall direct or any Commissioner shall demand a vote by roll call or by ballot, provided however, that any votes taken during a closed meeting shall be taken by roll call. In the case of an abstention or a nay vote, the Commissioner so abstaining or voting nay may be identified in the minutes of such meeting. Voting by ballot shall be disallowed when any Commissioner is participating in a Board meeting by conference telephone or other similar communications equipment.

Section 3.20 Compensation.

No Commissioner shall receive compensation from the Authority for any services performed; provided, however, Commissioners may receive reimbursement of actual and necessary expenses incurred by them on behalf of the Authority. The reimbursement of expenses shall be approved as provided in the Port KC Employee Manual as the same may be amended from time to time.

Section 3.21 Conflicts of Interest.

A Commissioner shall recuse himself or herself from any discussions, deliberations or votes on matters creating an actual, potential, or apparent conflict of interest or in which his or her participation would violate any provision of state or local law governing such matters, including but not limited to Chapter 105, RSMo and those provisions applicable to the Authority as contained within Chapter 2, Article XV, Division 2 of the City's Code of Ordinances.

ARTICLE IV

Officers

Section 4.1 Officers.

The officers of the Authority shall consist of Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, President/CEO, Secretary, Treasurer and such other offices as may from time to time be established by the Board.

Section 4.2 Election and Term of Office.

- A. Chairperson and Vice Chairperson. The Board shall elect from its membership a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson to serve for a two (2) year term or until their term of office as a Commissioner shall have expired, whichever is less. The Chairperson and Vice Chairperson shall be elected biennially at the annual meeting.
- B. Other Officers. All other officers of the Authority shall be elected annually by the Board at the annual meeting of the Authority. If the annual election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, all previously elected officers shall continue to hold their respective offices and the annual election shall be held as soon thereafter as convenient to the Board. Any officer duly elected may succeed himself or herself. Each officer shall hold office until his or her successor shall be duly elected and qualified or until his or her death, resignation or removal as provided by these By-Laws. Other than the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson, no officer need be a member of the Board.

Section 4.3 Removal.

Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board may be removed by it whenever, in its judgment, the best interests of the Authority will be served thereby.

Section 4.4 Vacancies.

A vacancy in any office for any reason shall be filled by the Board at any meeting for the unexpired portion of the term of such officer.

Section 4.5 General Powers.

The officers of the Authority shall have such powers and authority in the control and management of the business and affairs of the Authority as is usual and proper in the case of, and incident to, such offices, except insofar as such power and authority is limited by these By-Laws, by resolution of the Board, by Port Authority Law and/or any Ordinance of the City that is applicable to the Authority.

Section 4.6 Duties of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson.

The Chairperson shall preside at all Board meetings, and in his or her absence, the Vice Chairperson shall preside.

Section 4.7 Duties of Other Officers.

- A. President/CEO. The President/CEO shall be the principal executive officer of the Authority and, subject to the control of the Board, shall in general supervise and control the business and affairs of the Authority. Unless otherwise directed by these By-Laws or by the Board, the President/CEO shall supervise the business and affairs of the Authority and shall sign and deliver all agreements, documents and instruments executed in the name of the Authority; provided, however, that

the President/CEO shall be authorized to delegate his or her authority to execute time-sensitive documents on behalf of the Authority, provided such delegation of authority is in writing, limited to the Authority employees approved by him or her, and revocable at will so as to preserve his or her administrative oversight and control over any obligations to be incurred by the Authority. The President/CEO shall also be the coordinating officer of the Authority for public funding and port development activities as well as coordinator of City-related activities, and shall perform such other duties as are properly required by the Board.

B. Secretary. The Secretary shall have the following powers and duties:

- (1) Keep the minutes for the meetings of the Board as provided by law in one or more books provided for that purpose;
- (2) Assure that all notices are properly given, in accordance with these By-Laws and as required by law;
- (3) Be custodian of the records and seal of the Authority;
- (4) Assure that the seal of the Authority is affixed to all documents duly authorized for execution under seal on behalf of the Authority;
- (5) Keep a register which includes the address and telephone number of each Commissioner whose address and telephone number shall be furnished to the Secretary by the Commissioner;
- (6) Perform all duties incidental to the office of Secretary and such other duties as may be assigned to the Secretary by the Chairperson or the Board; and
- (7) Exercise such other authority as is from time to time delegated by the Board by resolution.

C. Treasurer: The Treasurer shall have the following powers and duties:

- (1) Cause all money paid to the Authority from all sources whatsoever to be properly receipted;
- (2) Cause all funds of the Authority to be deposited in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected by the Board;
- (3) Authorize, pursuant to Board direction, all orders and checks for the payment of money and shall cause the Authority's money to be paid out as directed by the Board;
- (4) Assure that regular books of accounts are kept showing receipts and expenditures, and render to the Board, at each regular meeting (or more

often when requested), an account of the Authority's transactions and also of the financial condition of the Authority;

- (5) Perform all duties incidental to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as may be assigned to the Treasurer by the Chairperson or the Board; and

If required by the Board, the Treasurer shall give bond for the faithful discharge of his or her duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board shall determine. The costs, if any, of such bonds shall be paid by the Authority.

- D. Additional Officers. The powers and duties of any additional officers shall be determined by the Board when creating such offices.

Section 4.8 Compensation.

No officer who is a member of the Board shall receive any salary or other compensation for services rendered unless the same shall be set by the Board.

Section 4.9 Employees and Independent Contractors.

The Authority may employ, or contract with another service provider for the services of, President/CEO, technical experts and such other officers, agents and employees, permanent and temporary, as the Authority may require, and shall determine their qualifications and duties and, if they are employees of the Authority, their compensation. For such legal services as it may require, the Authority may retain its own counsel. The Authority may delegate to one or more of its agents or employees such powers or duties as it may deem proper.

ARTICLE V

Contracts, Checks and Deposits

Section 5.1 Contracts.

The Board may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, and such Authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 5.2 Checks, Drafts, etc.

- A. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Authority and in an amount equal to or less than \$25,000 shall be signed by the President/CEO. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the President/CEO may elect to delegate that authority to the General Counsel, on an interim basis, if he or she is otherwise unavailable. The President/CEO shall retain full authority to withdraw the delegation of authority and shall be provided a register of any checks executed by

the General Counsel for purposes of retaining superintending oversight over the financial affairs of the Authority.

- B. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Authority and in an amount greater than \$25,000 shall be co-signed by any two of the following:
1. President/CEO
 2. Chairperson
 3. Vice Chairperson
 4. Treasurer
 5. Chairperson of the Finance & Administration Committee
 6. General Counsel

Section 5.3 Deposits.

All funds of the Authority not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Authority in such bank, trust companies or other depositories as the Board may select.

ARTICLE VI

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Authority shall begin on the first day of May of each year and end on the last day of April each year.

ARTICLE VII

Seal

The form of the corporate seal of the Authority shall be prescribed by the Board.

ARTICLE VIII

Waiver of Notice

Whenever any notice whatever is required to be given under the provisions of these By-Laws, waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the times stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

ARTICLE IX

Committees

- A. There shall be two (2) standing committees of the Board, to be known as the Development Committee and the Finance & Administration Committee. Each standing committee shall have four (4) members, drawn from the membership of

the Board, which shall include the Chairperson and such other Commissioners as shall be selected by the Chairperson. Each standing committee shall annually elect from among their respective membership a Commissioner to act as the chairperson and vice chairperson of the respective committee. The committees shall meet from time-to-time for purposes of reviewing resolutions and other matters to be considered by the Board and making their recommendations with respect to the same; provided, however, consideration of resolutions and other matters by a standing committee shall not be required with respect to any resolutions or matters the President/CEO deems of sufficient public interest as to warrant immediate advancement to the Board.

- B. The Chairperson or a majority of the Board shall have the right to establish from time to time such *ad hoc* committee(s) as they may deem expedient for the conduct of the Authority's business and to determine the total number of seats for such *ad hoc* committee(s). The members of any *ad hoc* committee(s) established by the Chairperson shall be determined by the Chairperson, in consultation with the Board. The members of any *ad hoc* committee(s) established by a majority of the Board shall be determined by those members of the Board establishing the same. The membership of any *ad hoc* committee may be limited to Commissioners or include members not serving on the Board, as the Chairperson or majority of the Board establishing said committee shall determine. Any *ad hoc* committee shall elect, from among its respective membership, a chairperson and vice chairperson of the respective committee.
- C. The chairperson of each standing and *ad hoc* committee shall have the authority to establish and amend such rules and procedures as they deem advisable to the expedient operation of the respective committee's business.
- D. Notwithstanding any provision of Section 3.15 of these Bylaws to the contrary, a quorum for purposes of any standing and *ad hoc* committee meeting shall be one-half of the respective committee's total membership.

ARTICLE X

Conflict of Interest

No officer, agent or employee of the Authority shall have or shall acquire any interest, direct or indirect, in any project which the Authority is promoting, or in any contract or proposed contract for materials or services in any lease, mortgage, sale, or contract of any nature whatever relating to any such project or the Authority without forthwith making written disclosure to the Authority of the nature and extent of his or her interest, and such disclosure shall be entered in writing upon the minute book of the Authority.

ARTICLE XI

Amendments

From time to time these By-Laws may be altered, amended or repealed and new By-Laws may be adopted by the Board after ten (10) days' written notice of the proposed alteration, amendment or change has been given to each Commissioner, provided that no alteration, amendment or change shall be made without the affirmative vote of a majority of the total number of Commissioners voting.

ARTICLE XII

Annual Report and Audit

The Board shall have prepared and file annual reports as required by the Port Authority Law, any City ordinance or any other law, and shall provide for the annual independent audits of the accounts of the Authority.

ARTICLE XIII

Indemnification of Commissioners and Officers

Section 13.1 Corporations Law.

Each person who was or is a Commissioner or officer of the Authority shall be indemnified by the Authority as a matter of right to the fullest extent permitted or authorized by Section 351.355, RSMo, and as otherwise provided in this Article.

Section 13.2 Actions, Suits or Proceedings.

- A. Subject to the exclusions set forth in Paragraph B hereof, the Authority further agrees to hold harmless and indemnify each person who was or is a Commissioner or officer against any and all expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the Commissioner or officer in connection with any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (including an action by or in the right of the Authority) to which the Commissioner or officer is, was or at any time becomes a party defendant, or is threatened to be made a party defendant, by reason of the fact that the Commissioner or officer is, was or at any time becomes a Commissioner, officer, employee or agent of the Port Authority, or is or was serving or at any time serves at the request of the Authority as a Commissioner, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other entity or enterprise.
- B. No indemnity pursuant to Paragraph A hereof shall be paid by the Authority: (1) in respect to remuneration paid to the Commissioner or officer if it shall be determined by a final judgment or other final adjudication that such remuneration was in violation of law; (2) on account of any Commissioner's or officer's conduct which is finally adjudged to have been knowingly fraudulent, deliberately dishonest or willful misconduct; (3) if a final decision by a court having jurisdiction in the matter shall determine that such indemnification is not lawful; or (4) with respect to any amounts paid pursuant to policies of insurance.

Section 13.3 Expenses.

Expenses incurred by any person who was or is a Commissioner or officer of the Authority in defending any threatened, pending or ongoing action, suit or proceeding (whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, including those by or in the right of the corporation) shall be promptly advanced by the Authority when so requested by such person at any time and from time to time, but only if the requesting person delivers to the Authority an undertaking to repay to the Authority all amounts so advanced if it should ultimately be determined that the requesting person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Authority under applicable law, this Article, by any bylaw of the Authority, agreement, vote of disinterested Commissioners or otherwise.

Section 13.4 Not Exclusive.

The indemnification and other rights provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which a Commissioner or officer may be entitled under any bylaw, agreement, vote of disinterested Commissioners or otherwise, both as to action in such person's official capacity and as to action in any other capacity while holding the office of Commissioner or officer, and the Authority is hereby specifically authorized to provide such indemnification and other rights by any bylaw, agreement, vote of disinterested Commissioners or otherwise.

Section 13.5 Third-Party Beneficiaries.

Each person who was or is a Commissioner or officer of the Authority and the heirs, executors, administrators and estate of such person, are third-party beneficiaries of this Article and shall be entitled to enforce against the Authority all indemnification and other rights granted to such person by applicable law and as otherwise provided in this Article.

Section 13.6 Amendment.

This Article may be hereafter amended or repealed; provided, however, that no amendment or repeal shall reduce, terminate or otherwise adversely affect the right of a person who was or is a commissioner or officer to obtain indemnification or an advance of expenses with respect to an action, suit or proceeding that pertains to or arises out of actions or omissions that occur prior to the effective date of such amendment or repeal.

Adopted this 23rd day of October 2023.

DocuSigned by:
Deb Hermann
2BECCEBA89849476
CHAIRPERSON

ATTEST:

DocuSigned by:
[Signature]
9287A9C70CA94B7...
SECRETARY